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Vision:

To be the preferred reinsurance company

NamibRe’s mandate:

Provide reinsurance services locally in order to curb capital outflow from the
insurance industry

Mission:

To provide professional and quality reinsurance services to our clients and
maximize shareholder returns

Values:

Integrity - We are open, honest and reliable
Positive attitude - We are enthusiastic, proactive and we enjoy what we do
Understanding and empathy - We are good listeners and we express
ourselves in a polite manner coupled with due care
Professional Service – We have the ability to use our knowledge competently,
confidently and with a positive approach
Deliver People’s Growth – NamibRe strives to enhance the well-being of
all staff members by embracing competency development initiatives and
ensuring equitable conditions of employment
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Dear Shareholders,

As I draft my first report as the Chairperson of the NamibRe Board, the following quote
resonates with me “The pessimist sees difficulty in every opportunity. The optimist
sees opportunity in every difficulty.” – Winston Churchill. Surely, I consider myself very
fortunate to follow in the footsteps of my predecessor, Mr Ismael Gei-Khoibeb, who has
been instrumental in creating what is arguably one of the best performing State-Owned
Enterprises (SOEs) in Namibia.

Having served as Deputy Chairperson since 2013, I am proud to say that the corporation
continues to excel, as demonstrated in the financial results for the year ended March 2018.
Achieving positive financial results, despite the current economic situation is not easy. As you
may be aware, the performance of the domestic economy has been subdued since 2016 and
is estimated to have contracted by 0.6% in 2017. This is mainly due to factors such as:
• commodity price crash;
• weak growth in neighbouring trading partners which adversely impacted on the domestic
economy;
• exchange rates volatility;
• declining domestic revenue due to falls in SACU receipts;
• fall in domestic consumption, and
• capital outflows in domestic private sector investment and foreign direct investment; to mention
a few.
Notwithstanding, the domestic economy is projected to grow by 2.5% and 3.7% in 2018 and 2019,
respectively and hence the Corporation remains optimistic that the projected growth estimates will
materialise. Indeed, a comparison between the performance of the domestic economy in 2017 and
the current, shows that the position of the economy is better than the last year as shown in the
construction, communication, transport, wholesale and retail sectors.

Market Overview

Insurance penetration in Namibia remains fairly good at 7.2%. This is below that of South Africa which stands
at 14.0%, but better than Sub-Saharan Africa with an average of 3.8%. Although, second in penetration in
Sub–Saharan Africa, a substantial amount of insurance premiums continues to leave the country.

Dividend declared
The Corporation yet again had a good financial year and was in a position to declare dividends to the Government.
NamibRe declared a dividend amount of N$6.15 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2018. This is equal to 20%
of the net profits of the Corporation for the same period.

Credit Rating

I am happy to report that the ongoing challenges faced by the Corporation have not adversely affected the rating
of the Corporation. Global Credit Rating (“GCR”) affirmed an A+(NA) credit rating with a stable outlook for the
Corporation. Furthermore, Global Credit Ratings also accorded an initial international scale claims paying ability
rating of BB to NamibRe, with the outlook accorded as negative. The good rating came as a result of NamibRe’s
healthy business profile, supported by a strong domestic market share and well diversified earning stream.
The Corporation Moodys rating is a Ba2 IFS. The rate indicated that NamibRe has a good capitalisation relative
to its current exposures. The rating also came as a result of the country’s sovereign rating.

In Conclusion

The financial year 2018 was a challenging year for the Corporation. Despite that, the Corporation remained
steadfast in its performance in delivering its mandate by contributing towards limiting the capital outflow from
the insurance industry. The gazetting of the notices in December 2017 was a major milestone in this respect.
Therefore, I am satisfied with the performance of the Corporation and would like to use this opportunity to
thank its staff members for their hard work and dedication.
It would be remiss of me if I did not thank the Ministry of Finance and the corporation’s technical partners
and all stakeholders for their continued support.
Thank you.
Libertha Kapere
Chairperson of the NamibRe Board

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the insurance industry comprised of 16 registered short-term and
16 long-term insurance companies. Together the insurance industry’s premiums amounted to N$12.8 billion
with long-term industry writing up 71% of the total premiums. The industry still faces challenges of insurance
premiums leaving the country in the form of reinsurance amounting to N$1.285 billion. Both the short-term
and long-term industry are adequately capitalised and solvent with solvency ratio standing at 33% at 31
March 2018.

Financial results of the Corporation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to present to you the Corporation’s Annual Report
and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Although recording positive results for the year, the Corporation’s gross written premium (GWP) contracted by
20% to N$245 million in the current financial year. This was due to the withdrawal of the notices which supported
legal cession to the Corporation in February 2017.
However, despite the contraction in the top line, the Profit Before Tax increased by 44% to N$43 million during the
current financial year while profit after tax stood at N$31 million.
Prudent underwriting philosophy and stringent claims management process contributed massively to the Corporation’s
positive underwriting profit. Furthermore, the Corporation’s strategy of continuous reassessment of its clients’ portfolio,
discontinuance of ongoing loss making portfolio’s/market’s assisted towards good results. This is in line with the
Corporations goals to deliver long-term sustainable returns for its shareholders.
The growth in income, high capital retention level coupled with a conservative investment policy resulted in positive
growth in shareholder funds of the Corporation. During the reported financial year, the Corporation’s balance sheet grew
by 14% to N$ 211 million from N$ 184 million [2017].
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Dear Stakeholders,

It is my distinct pleasure to report on the operational activities of the Corporation which
took place during the year ended 31 March 2018. The Corporation met its budget
targets despite the slowed performance in the domestic economy.
Below is an overview of the other operational activities of the Corporation in terms of
strategy, corporate social responsibility, staffing and stakeholder engagement.

Strategy

The Corporation undertook a mid-term review of its strategic plan. The process, started in
February 2017 and concluded in February 2018, after the Board approved the revised plan.
The review process during 2017 was influenced by the work towards the enactment of the per
policy cession provision in the NamibRe Act which required the Corporation to revisit some of
the agreed upon strategic objectives.
Substantial progress was made in the strategic objectives of the strategic plan, which entails
the implementation of the per policy cession. To this end, the notices were gazetted on the 27th
December 2017 and were set to become effective on the 27th June 2018. This was indeed a
major milestone for the Corporation during the current review period.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a good corporate citizen, the Corporation continued to make various donations to schools and
other community related projects as part of its efforts to support the Government towards poverty
eradication and infrastructure development.

Stakeholder Engagement

As part of the effort to foster close relationships with the industry, the Corporation accelerated its
industry engagement efforts. These included engaging the local (and South African) market, especially
the CEOs and Senior Managers of the local insurance industry, in order to raise awareness and discuss
modalities of the gazetted notices, which would result in the implementation of per policy cession. The
Corporation participated in annual insurance conferences as part of its efforts to grow its foreign business
and foster relationships with foreign market players. As part of engaging the industry, the Corporation
provided assistance to Continental Re to host its 5th CEO summit in Namibia. The event took place in April
2018 and was attended by more than 100 CEOs from all over Africa.

Training and Development

As part of its mandate to promote training for Namibians in the insurance industry, the Corporation employs interns in its
various Department. The interns graduated from local universities and the internship was intended to give them hands
on work experience as well as exposing them to the field of Reinsurance.

Bursary Sponsorships

The Corporation continued to provide financial support to talented young Namibians, pursuing studies in the fields
of Actuarial Science, Engineering and Financial accounting. To date, the Corporation has a total of ten (10) bursary
students who are enrolled at local, as well as international universities.

Staff Engagement

The Corporation used various initiatives to enhance team cohesion and internal relations. These include the
introduction of a Monday ‘Meet and Greet’ session where staff members meet for a period of 30 minutes. Staff
participation in Marathons continued to be a cornerstone initiative of the Corporation to foster team cohesion,
and enhance wellness amongst staff members.

In Conclusion

The Corporation continues to deliver on its mandate of providing quality reinsurance to the local as well as
international insurance companies. To this end, I look forward to yet another year of working with our local
and international industry.
I wish to thank all of our stakeholders, technical partners, reinsurance brokers and cedants, locally and
internationally for their support. I am equally grateful to our Board of Directors who continue to provide
guidance to the Corporation and fulfill their fiduciary duties with the utmost care and diligence.
Allow me also to thank the Minister of Finance Honourable Calle Schlettwein and his staff for their
unwavering support to the Corporation.

Patty Karuaihe-Martin
Managing Director

As part of its value addition proposition, the Corporation collaborated with Africa Re South Africa to provide
the Non-Life Reinsurance training seminar. The training was attended by over forty (40) participants from the
local insurance industry.

Enhancing the Public Profile of the Corporation

The Corporation accelerated the use of social media, especially its Facebook account to enhance the public
profile of the Corporation. The Corporation used this platform to advertise activities of the Corporation such as
training and also shared information on reinsurance.
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Governance

This section provides an overview of Corporate Governance by focusing on how the
Board of Directors fulfilled their fiduciary duties and responsibilities in accordance with
relevant legislations.
The affairs of the Corporation are managed and controlled by a Board which has been appointed
by the Minister of Finance in terms of section 4 (2a) of the NamibRe Act, Act no. 22 of 1998.

Composition of the Board

The NamibRe Board currently comprises of nine (9) Directors, made up of eight (8) Nonexecutive and one (1) Executive Director. All Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the
Minister of Finance on a fixed three (3) year term. The Board members under the current
financial year were appointed on the 14th February 2017. The Board of Directors who served
on the NamibRe Board during the financial year 1 April 2017 – 31 March 2018 are:

01. Ms Libertha Kapere (Chairperson)
02. Advocate Slysken Makando (Vice-Chairperson)
03. Ms Patty Karuaihe-Martin (Executive Member)
04. Ms Ndapandula Tshitayi (Member)
05. Mr Theodor Saunderson (Member)
06. Mr Tomas Iindji (Member)
07. Ms Anthea Beukes (Member)
08. Mr Hilifa Mbako (Member)
09. Mr Fanuel Tjivau (Member)
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Gazetting of the Current Board

As required by the NamibRe Act of 1998, section 4(5), the Board of Directors of the
Corporation were gazetted on the 15th March 2017.

Board Meetings

During the financial year ending 31st March 2018, the Board held a total of eleven (11)
meetings, of which four (4) were regular Board meetings. The high number of Board meetings
was necessitated by the extraordinary events taking place during the year under review.

During this period, the Board approved recommendations to the Minister of Finance in
accordance with the NamibRe Act (section 39 – 41); approved the revised strategic plan of the
Corporation; The Organogram of the Corporation; the annual operating and capital expenditure
budget of the Corporation and the audited financial statements of the Corporation.

Directors Attendance at Meetings

The table below depicts the attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year.
Date

L Kapere S Makando A Beukes T. Saunderson

T. Iindji

N. Tshitayi

I. Gei-Khoibeb

3 April 2017

x

x

x

x

x

x

-

24 April 2017

x

x

x

x

x

x

-

29th May 2017

x

x

-

x

x

x

-

10th July 2017

x

-

x

x

x

x

24th July 2017

x

x

-

x

x

x

17 August 2017

x

-

x

x

x

x

20th September 2017

x

x

x

x

-

x

5 October 2017

x

x

x

x

x

x

rd

th

th

th

5 December 2017

x

x

x

x

x

x

14th February 2018

Telcon

x

x

x

-

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

th

26 March 2018
th

The Corporation has four Committees, which assist the Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities. The
Board committee include the Remuneration Committee, Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, Technical
and Finance Committee, and Investment Committee. The Chairpersons of the Committees are appointed by
the Board.
Composition of the Committees
The members of the Committee, including the Chairpersons of the Committee were appointed at the Board
meeting held on the 4th April 2017.

2. Technical and Finance Committee
•
Mr. Theodor Saunderson – Chairperson
•
Ms. Ndapandula Tshitayi
•
Ms. Libertha Kapere

1. Remuneration Committee
The Committee met four times during the review period. The Committee oversees the Corporation’s Human Resources
Management activities on behalf of the Board.
Date

T. Iindji

L. Kapere

24 April 2017

x

x

x

27th September 2017

x

-

x

27th November 2017

x

-

x

12 March 2018

x

x

-

th

th

3. Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
•
Ms. Ndapandula Tshitayi – Chairperson
•
Ms. Anthea Beukes
•
Mr. Tomas Koneka Iindji
•
Mr. Theodor Saunderson
4. Investment Committee
•
Adv. Slysken Makando - Chairperson
•
Ms. Anthea Beukes
•
Ms. Libertha Kapere

// 18

S. Makando I. Gei-Khoibeb
-

2. Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
The Committee met three times during this period to deliberate on and approve the audit plan, budget and
audited financial statements (AFS) of the Corporation for the financial year ending 31 March 2018.
Date

A. Beukes

N. Tshitayi
T. Saunderson
(Chairperson)

T. Iindji

15th May 2017

x

x

-

x

20 September 2017

x

x

x

-

26th March 2018

-

x

-

-

th

3. Technical and Finance Committee
The Technical and Finance Committee (TFC) is responsible for ensuring that the Corporation has
adequate and effective internal control and reporting systems in place and ensures that the Corporation
maintains a sound financial position at all times. The committee held four meetings, of which one was
an extraordinary committee meeting.
T. Saunderson
(Chairperson)

L. Kapere

N. Tshitayi

1st August,2017

x

x

x

20 November 2017

x

x

x

12 February 2017

x

x

14 February 2018

x

x

x

S. Makando
(Chairperson)

L. Kapere

A. Beukes

17th July 2017

-

x

-

17 August 2017

-

x

x

13 February 2018

x

-

x

Date
th

Board Committees

1. Remuneration Committee
• Mr. Tomas Koneka Iindji – Chairperson
• Adv. Slysken Makando
• Ms. Libertha Kapere
•
Mr. Ismael Gei-Khoibeb

Meetings and Attendance

th
th

4. Investment Committee
Date

th
th

Annual General Meeting

The Corporation held its Annual General Meeting (AGM) on the 5th December 2017 as
required by the Companies Act (Act No: 8 of 2004). Among others, the AGM approved
the (i) appointment of the External Auditors for the Corporation; (ii) Audited Financial
Statements and annual report of the Corporation. At the same meeting, the Corporation
declared a dividend of N$5 million to the shareholder for the financial year ended 31
March 2017, which is 23% of the net profit of the Corporation for the same financial
year.
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01. Ms Patty Karuaihe-Martin (Managing Director)
02. Ms Ntwala Mwilima (General Manager: Corporate Affairs & Strategy)
03. Mr Francois Francis (General Manager: Finance & Administration)
04. Mr Rudolph Humavindu (General Manager: Reinsurance)
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Staff of the Corporation
01. MD’s Office
02. Reinsurance Department
03. Finance & Admin Department
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Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018
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Directors
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Postal address
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Auditor
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Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of Namibia to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included
in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the corporation as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then
ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditor is engaged to express an
independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the corporation and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors
to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error
or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the corporation and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the corporation’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the corporation is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all
known forms of risk across the corporation. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the corporation endeavours
to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the corporation’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March, 2019 and, in light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the corporation has or had access to adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditor is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the corporation’s annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the corporation’s external auditor and their report
is presented on pages 33 to 34.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 37 to 67, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board of directors.

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited
Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Namibia
National Reinsurance Corporation Limited (the Company) as at 31 March, 2018 , and its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.
What we have audited
Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited’s financial statements set out on pages 35 to 67 comprise:
• The directors’ report for the year ended 31 March, 2018;
• the statement of financial position as at 31 March, 2018;
• the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A & B) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Namibia. We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with this and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits in Namibia.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018. Other information does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors By:

Director

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Director

Windhoek

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
PricewaterhouseCoopers , Registered Auditors, 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, PO Box 1571, Windhoek,
Namibia Practice Number 9406, T:+ 264 (61) 2841000, F: +264 (61) 2841001, www.pwc.com/na
Country Senior Partner: R Nangula Uaandja
Partners: Carl P van der Merwe, Louis van der Riel, Anna EJ Rossouw, Chantell N Husselmann, Gerrit Esterhuyse,
Samuel N Ndahangwapo, Hans F Hashagen, Johannes P Ne!, Trofimus Shapange, Nelson Lucas

Date:
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Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Directors’ Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Namibia National
Reinsurance Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

1. Nature of business
Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited was incorporated in Namibia with interests in the Insurance
industry. The corporation operates in Namibia.
The corporation is the only reinsurer in Namibia and provides reinsurance to local and international insurance
companies. In terms of the Namibian National Reinsurance Corporation Act, insurance companies are obliged to
present 20% of all their underwritten insurance to the corporation. The corporation provides both long-term and
short-term reinsurance. Short-term reinsurance is provided for fire, aviation, guarantee, miscellaneous, personal
lines, special riot risk, medical, motor, marine, liability and property in the form of reinsurance treaties.
There have been no material changes to the nature of the corporation’s business from the prior year.
2. Review of financial results and activities
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently compared to the prior year.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the corporation are set out in
these annual financial statements.
3. Authorised and issued share capital
There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.
4. Dividends
Dividends declared and paid to the shareholder in the current financial year amounted to N$5 000 000
(2017: N$3 500 000).
5. Directorate
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors 		
Appointments/Resignations
L D Kapere (Chairperson)
S Makando (Deputy Chairperson)
P A Martin (Managing Director)
A Beukes
I Gei-Khoibeb
Resigned 14 July, 2017
T K Iindji
H Mbako 		
Appointed 01 April, 2018
T J A Saunderson
F Tjivau 		
Appointed 01 April, 2018
N J Tshitayi
The directors were reappointed on 1 April, 2018. All directors are Namibian.
6. Shareholder
The corporation is wholly-owned by the Government of the Republic of Namibia (Ministry
of Finance).
7. Events after the reporting period
On the 20th of September, 2018, the directors approved a dividend of N$6 150 000.
The directors are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the
reporting date and up to the date of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Registered Accountants and Auditors Chartered Accountants Namibia
Per: Trofimus Shapange
Partner
Windhoek
Date: 21 September, 2018
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8. Regulation and litigation
On the 29th of December, 2017, the government of Namibia issued an announcement that in terms of Section 47 of the
Namibian National Reinsurance Corporation Act, all Namibian insurance companies are required to cede business per
policy level to the Corporation. This notice was effective 180 days after publication. There are currently legal proceedings
against the Corporation in this regard. Refer to note 32 for further information.
Other than those which are recorded in these financial statements, the directors are not aware of any legal or arbitration
proceedings, including proceedings that are pending or threatened that may have a material effect on the financial
position of the company.
9. Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers continued in office as auditor for the Corporation for 2018 and will continue in office in
accordance with Section 278 (2) of the Namibian Companies Act.
10. Secretary
The company secretary is Ntwala Mwilima.

// 36

		
Notes

2018
N$

2017
N$

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
5
Intangible assets
6
Investments held to maturity
7
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
8
Reinsurance assets
9
Insurance and other receivables
10
Current tax receivable
11
Deferred acquisition costs
12
Staff loans and other prepayments
13
Cash and cash equivalents
14
Total Assets 		

37 417 712
535 973
50 220 168
157 153 213
20 712 752
10 334 208
1 535 170
2 243 769
22 476 534
302 629 499

28 851 514
547 293
51 471 026
109 170 300
13 450 057
31 362 433
1 206 137
2 938 444
500 714
45 556 563
285 054 481

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital
16
Retained income 		
Reserves
17
		

20 000 000
107 401 944
83 099 585
210 501 529

20 000 000
94 658 841
69 590 003
184 248 844

Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
18
Deferred tax
19
Reinsurance and other payables
20
Current tax payable
11
Insurance liabilities
21
Total Liabilities 		
Total Equity and Liabilities 		

116 185
8 387 384
21 132 011
7 668 976
54 823 414
92 127 970
302 629 499

31 368
11 747 925
25 388 937
63 637 407
100 805 637
285 054 481
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Notes

2018
N$

2017
N$

Gross premium written
23
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
23
Net premiums earned 		

245 947 966
(83 480 918)
162 467 048

307 145 059
(64 994 108)
242 150 951

Fees and commission received 		
Investment income
24
Sundry income 		
Fair value adjustments
3
Other income 		
Net income 		

20 599 724
11 496 719
140 375
4 513 008
36 749 826
199 216 874

16 884 463
9 681 677
46 195
4 549 797
31 162 132
273 313 083

Gross benefits and claims incurred
25
Claims ceded to reinsurers
25
Gross change in insurance liabilities
25
Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers
25
Net benefits and claims 		

(87 897 084)
21 328 009
1 330 576
7 475 410
(57 763 089)

(157 739 569)
31 433 579
(14 171 715)
9 445 487
(131 032 218)

Fees and commission paid 		
Other operating expenses 		

(56 480 560)
(41 594 539)

(76 874 856)
(35 304 960)

(98 075 099)
(155 838 188)
43 378 686

(112 179 816)
(243 212 034)
30 101 049

27

(10 580)

(3 756)

Profit before taxation 		
Taxation
28

43 368 106
(12 614 571)

30 097 293
(8 540 412)

30 753 535
30 753 535

21 556 881
21 556 881

Other expenses 		
Total benefits, claims and other expenses 		
Results of operating activities
26
Finance costs paid

Profit for the year 		
Total comprehensive income for the year 		
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Share
Revaluation
Staff
capital
reserve
welfare
			reserve
N$
N$
N$
Balance at 01 April, 2016
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to general reserve
Utilised during the year
Transfer to staff welfare reserve
Dividends paid
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners of company recognised
directly in equity
Balance at 01 April, 2017
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer between reserves
Transfer to revaluation reserve
Utilisation of reserve
Dividends paid
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners of company recognised
directly in equity
Balance at 31 March, 2018
Notes

General
reserve
N$

20 000 000
-

3 587 172
-

1 480 464
(223 805)
1 077 844
-

56 144 004
7 524 324
-

20 000 000
-

3 587 172
1 871 923
-

854 039
2 334 503
2 168 405
(1 372 773)
-

7 524 324
63 668 328
10 842 027
-

20 000 000
16

1 871 923
5 459 095
17

795 632
3 130 135
17

10 842 027
74 510 355
17

		
		
		

Total
reserves
N$

Retained
income
N$

Total
equity
N$

Balance at 01 April, 2016
Profit for the year 		
Total comprehensive income for the year 		
Transfer to general reserve 		
Utilised during the year 		
Transfer to staff welfare reserve 		
Dividends paid 		
Total contributions by and distributions to owners
of company recognised directly in equity		
Balance at 01 April, 2017 		
Profit for the year 		
Total comprehensive income for the year 		
Transfer between reserves 		
Transfer to revaluation reserve 		
Utilisation of reserve 		
Dividends paid 		
Total contributions by and distributions to owners
of company recognised directly in equity		
Balance at 31 March, 2018 		
Notes

61 211 640
7 524 324
(223 805)
1 077 844
-(

85 204 128
21 556 881
21 556 881
(7 524 324)
(1 077 844)
3 500 000)

166 415 768
21 556 881
21 556 881
(223 805)
(3 500 000)

8 378 363
69 590 003
13 010 432
1 871 923
(1 372 773)
-

(12 102 168)
94 658 841
30 753 535
30 753 535
(13 010 432)
(5 000 000)

(3 723 805)
184 248 844
30 753 535
30 753 535
1 871 923
(1 372 773)
(5 000 000)

13 509 582
83 099 585

(18 010 432)
107 401 944

(4 500 850)
210 501 529
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Notes

2018
N$

2017
N$

28 195 490
6 157 671
(7 100 000)
27 253 161

15 977 572
8 450 529
1 231 148
(3 756)
(220 735)
25 434 758

(7 443 856)
101 788
3 120 000
(40 000 000)
(44 222 068)

(3 684 710)
(87 825)
(16 954 451)
33 448 191
12 721 205

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments
31
Dividends paid 		
Net cash from financing activities 		

(43 037)
(5 000 000)
(5 043 037)

(25 862)
(3 500 000)
(3 525 862)

Total cash movement for the year 		
Cash at the beginning of the year 		
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances 		
Total cash at end of the year
14

(22 011 944)
45 556 563
(1 068 085)
22 476 534

34 630 101
11 548 546
(622 084)
45 556 563

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
29
Interest received on investments received 		
Dividend income received 		
Finance costs paid
27
Tax paid
30
Net cash from operating activities 		
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
5
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
5
Purchase of intangible assets
6
Maturation (purchase) of investments held to maturity
7
(Purchase) disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss
Net cash from investing activities 		

course of business. The Corporation recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

1.1 Presentation of financial statements
The annual financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRS’) and the Companies Act of Namibia
and the Namibian National Reinsurance Corporation Act.
They have been prepared on the historic cost convention,
incorporating the principal accounting policies set out
below. The presentation currency is Namibian
Dollars.

The Corporation recognises the net future tax benefit
related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that the deductible temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the
recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires
the Corporation to make significant estimates related to
expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future
taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from
operations and the application of existing tax laws in each
jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable
income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the
Corporation to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded
at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.

These accounting policies are consistent with the policies
applied in the previous period.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation
uncertainty
The preparation of annual financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to
time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates
and associated assumptions are based on experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Insurance liabilities
Insurance liabilities comprise a provision for unearned
premiums; provision for claims IBNR and provision for
outstanding claims which are accounted for as disclosed
in the following notes.
Information on the sensitivities of certain major
assumptions in the underlying calculations can be found
within the ‘Insurance risk; section of note 3.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Management did not make critical judgements in the
application of accounting policies, apart from those
involving estimations, which would significantly affect the
financial statements.

> Provision for unearned premiums
The provision for unearned premiums represents
premiums received during the year which pertain to
periods of risk extending beyond the end of the financial
year. Management calculates the provision by estimating
the proportion of annual premiums that relate to future
periods with reference to the respective contracts in place.
Of the reported net premiums, being insurance premiums
less commissions paid away, which are earned by the
insurers, it is currently estimated that 1/8th of the first
quarter, 3/8ths of the second quarter, 5/8ths of the third
quarter and 7/8ths of the fourth quarter is unearned.
Accordingly the income and the related reinsurance
expense, where applicable, do not meet the recognition
criteria and are excluded from profit or loss in a deferred
liability or asset account.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Asset useful lives and residual values
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over their useful lives taking into account residual values,
where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and
residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors such as technological
innovation, asset life cycles and maintenance programs.
Residual value assessments consider issues such as
future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset
and projected disposal values.

> Provision for claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR)
This refers to claims incurred but not yet reported at
year end and is calculated by actuaries using statistical
methods.

Taxation
In terms of Section 45 of the Namibia National Reinsurance
Corporation Act of 1998, the Corporation is not liable to
pay income taxation under Namibian legislation until such
time that the general reserve fund is equal to or exceeds
twice the amount of the authorized share capital. As the
general reserve (after a transfer of profit before tax) has
exceeded twice the amount of the authorised share capital
since year ended 31 March, 2014, the Corporation is liable
for income taxation in the current year.

The provision for life IBNR has been calculated at 85%
(2017:85%) of premiums earned. A claims loss ratio
approach, an accepted actuarial methology, was used to
calculate the liability. This is due to life insurance being
a recent addition to the product offering of the business
and accordingly there is currently insufficient claims data
to analyse using the usual actuarial methodologies. This
estimate is based on past experience and industry norms
in Namibia and other African countries.

Judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
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The provision for non-life IBNR has been calculated at
14.51% (2017:10.34%) of premiums earned using a mix
of loss ratio and actuarial methodologies using information
on historical trends, past experience and industry norms
in Namibia.

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on
periodic but at least triennial, valuations by external
independent appraisers, less subsequent depreciation
for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the building and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the buildings.

> Provisions for outstanding claims
Outstanding claims are those which have incurred and
reported but have not been settled at reporting date. The
provision is calculated by management and is based on
the estimated cost of actual outstanding claims received
relating to the current year.
The insurers measure outstanding claims at the best
estimate of the cost required to settle the obligation at
the reporting date. This estimation of the cost takes into
account average claims, average claims handling cost,
a reduction for the expected value of salvage and other
recoveries, and other indicators such as inflation.

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments where no active
market exists or where quoted market prices are not
available, are determined by using valuation techniques.
In these cases, the fair values are estimated from
observable data in respect of similar financial instruments.
Where market observable inputs are not available, they
are estimated based on an appropriate assumption.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method
of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates,
the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the instrument.

1.4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Liability adequacy testing
In compliance with certain regulations governing the
insurance sector in Namibia, the Corporation must meet
specific solvency ratios in the life and non-life insurance
business, respectively. At each end of each reporting
period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the
adequacy of the contract liabilities net of related assets.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The amortisation periods and methods for intangible
assets are reviewed every financial year end.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles,
customer lists and items similar in substance are not
recognised as intangible assets.

These solvency ratios are derived through actuarial
calculations where insurance liabilities are quantified,
gross and net of related assets, and subjected to a ‘liability
adequacy test’. In deriving the liability values, estimations
and assumptions are made. For more information on
the sensitivity surrounding these estimations, refer to
‘Insurance risk’ within note 3.

1.5 Financial instruments
Classification
The Corporation classifies financial assets and financial
liabilities into the following categories:
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held for trade
• Held-to-maturity investment
• Loans and receivables
• Financial assets measured at amortised cost
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, excluding land and
buildings, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.
// 42

Held to maturity
These financial assets are initially measured at fair value
plus direct transaction costs.
At subsequent reporting dates these are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect
irrecoverable amounts. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the investment’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the investment’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

The Corporation classifies financial instruments, or their
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset,
a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
except for those instruments for which a fair value is
not determinable which are measured at cost and are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount
of the item. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

possible on entity-specific inputs.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the
Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is
charged so as to allocate the cost of the asset less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in
profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)
The amount of acquisition costs to be deferred is
dependant on managements’ estimation of the ratio of
costs incurred that relate to income not yet earned. The
deferment is to match the expenses with the income in the
correct reporting period.

Classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial instruments were obtained or incurred and takes
place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on
an annual basis.

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets that the Corporation has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
held to maturity.

Regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted
for at trade date.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the Corporation assesses all
financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, to determine whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been
impaired.

Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value being included in
profit or loss for the period.

For amounts due to the Corporation, significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered
indicators of impairment.

Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss include dividends and interest.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss as part
of other income when the Corporation’s right to receive
payment is established.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in
the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss except for equity investments classified as availablefor-sale.

Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
and for unlisted securities, the Corporation establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss within operating expenses. When such assets
are written off, the write off is made against the relevant
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against operating
expenses.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.
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Insurance and other receivables
Insurance receivables are measured at initial recognition
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition.

paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the
amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised
as an asset.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except to the extent that the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profit or loss nor
taxable profit or loss.

Insurance and other receivables are classified as loans
and receivables.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset
is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the
transaction, affects neither accounting profit or loss nor
taxable profit or loss.

Current tax liabilities or assets for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Reinsurance and other payables
Reinsurance and other payables are recognised when due
and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration paid less directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
These include amounts due to agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward
of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised.

Reinsurance payables are derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates and tax that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at
fair value.

Income tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or
an expense and included in profit or loss for the period,
except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction
or event which is recognised, in the same or a different
period, to other comprehensive income, or a business
combination.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that
are credited or charged, in the same or a different period,
to other comprehensive income.

1.6 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent
unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already
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Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited
directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly in
equity.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of
an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation increase.

1.7 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if
it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.

1.9 Share capital and equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity were there is no
obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental cost
directly attributable to to the issue of equity instruments are
shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.

Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in
the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

1.10 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, which are
payable within 12 months after the service is rendered,
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses,
and non-monetary benefits such as medical care, are
recognised in the period in which the service is rendered
and are not discounted.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of
the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in
the lease.

The expected cost of compensated absences is
recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of
non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the
remaining balance of the liability.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result
of past performance.

1.8 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Corporation assesses at each end of the reporting
period whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Corporation
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Corporation has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. The
Corporation has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an
impairment loss.

Payments made to industry-managed or state retirement
benefit schemes or plans are dealt with as defined
contribution plans where the Corporation’s obligation
under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Corporation before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Corporation recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value. Defined benefit plans
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those
assets are estimated. The increased carrying amount
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior periods.
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receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

Fees and commission income
Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy
administration services, surrenders and other contract
fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over the
period in which the related services are performed. If the
fees are for services provided in future periods, then they
are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

1.11 Provisions and contingencies
The amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when,
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if
the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be
treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Finance income
Finance income comprises interest income on funds
invested and dividend income. Interest income is recognised
as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend
income is recognised on the date that the Corporation’s
right to receive payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Other income
Other income comprises of rental income in the prior
year and sundry income. Other income is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will
flow to the Corporation and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is received.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present
obligation under the contract shall be recognised and
measured as a provision.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not
recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 32.

1.13 Benefits, claims and expenses recognition
Gross benefits and claims
Gross benefits and claims include all claims occurring
during the year, whether reported or not; related internal
and external claims handling costs that are directly related
to the processing and settlement of claims; a reduction
for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any
adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

1.12 Revenue
Gross premiums written
Gross premiums written comprise the total premiums
receivable for the whole period of the cover provided
by contracts entered into during the accounting period.
They are recognised on the date on which the policy
commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in
the accounting period for premiums receivable in respect
of business written in prior accounting periods as well as
unearned premiums relating to future accounting periods.

Reinsurance claims
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross
insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of
the relevant contract.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums
written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the
reporting date. The proportion attributable to subsequent
periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums
and is included in insurance liabilities in the statement of
financial liability.

Fees and commission expense
Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy
administration services, surrenders and other contract
fees. These fees are recognised as expenses as incurred.
If the fees are for services provided in future periods,
then they are deferred and recognised over those future
periods.

Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Premiums ceded to reinsurers comprise the total premiums
payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered
into the period and are recognised on the date on which
the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments
arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods as well
as unearned reinsurance premiums relating to future
accounting periods.

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)
In reinsurance, those costs directly associated with
the acquisition of new contracts, mainly comprising
commissions, are deferred to the extent that these costs
are recoverable out of future premiums. All other acquisition
costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. The
deferred acquisition costs are therefore recorded as
assets on the statement of financial position to the extent
that contracts are profitable. They are amortised on the
basis of the residual term of the contracts in non-life.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of
premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after
the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are
deferred over the term of the underlying direct insurance
policies.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
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of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period and are treated as a change in an accounting
estimate.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for
both ceded and assumed reinsurance.
Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when
the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when
the contract is transferred to another party.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting
date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss. DAC are also considered in the liability adequacy
test for each reporting period.

Reinsurance contracts that do not transfer significant
insurance risk are accounted for directly in the statement
of financial position. These are deposit assets or financial
liabilities that are recognised based on the consideration
paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or
fees to be retained by the reinsured.

DAC are derecognised when the related contracts are
either settled or disposed of.

Investment income on these contracts is accounted for
using the effective interest rate method when accrued.

1.14 Reinsurance contracts
The Corporation cedes insurance risk in the normal course
of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. This
includes the reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums,
provision for outstanding claims and provision for claims
incurred but not reported. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated
with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the
related reinsurance contract.

1.15 Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial
recognition in Namibian Dollars, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous annual
financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Reinsurance assets are recognised when due and
measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial
recognition, reinsurance assets are measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each
reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment
occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of
an event that occurred after initial recognition of the
reinsurance asset that the Corporation may not receive
all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact
on the amounts that the Corporation will receive from the
reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency
are recorded in Namibian Dollars by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the Namibian
Dollar and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income immediately at
the date of purchase.

1.16 Dividend distribution
Dividend declared to the Government of the Republic
of Namibia are recognised as a liability in the annual
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the directors of the Corporation to the
extent they are unpaid.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the
Corporation of its obligations to policyholders. The
Corporation also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal
course of business for non-life insurance contracts where
applicable.
Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are
recognised as revenue or expenses in the same manner
as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct
business, taking into account the product classification of
the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent
balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable
are estimated in a manner consistent with the related
reinsurance contract.
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2. New Standards and Interpretations

changes in estimates and applied prospectively.

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in
the current year
In the current year, the Corporation has adopted the
following standards and interpretations that are effective
for the current financial year and that are relevant to its
operations:

The effective date of the interpretation is for years
beginning on or after 01 January, 2019.
The Corporation expects to adopt the interpretation for the
first time in the 2020 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the interpretation will have a material
impact on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure initiative
The amendment requires entities to provide additional
disclosures for changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities. Specifically, entities are now required to provide
disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

IFRS 16: Leases
IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17
Leases and introduces a single lessee accounting model.
The main changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which
may impact the Corporation are as follows:
• Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability for all leases, except short term
leases or leases where the underlying asset has a low
value, which are expensed on a straight line or other
systematic basis.
• The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on
the cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement
of the lease liability.
• The lease liability is subsequently increased by
interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured
for reassessments or modifications.
• Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be
presented separately from other assets and liabilities.
If not, then the line item in which they are included
must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use
assets meeting the definition of investment property
which must be presented within investment property.
IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements
compared to IAS 17 leases.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 January, 2017.
The Corporation has adopted the amendment for the first
time in the 2018 annual financial statements.
Refer to the Statement of Cash Flows for disclosure on
cash flows from financing activities.
2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The Corporation has chosen not to early adopt the following
standards and interpretations, which have been published
and are mandatory for the Corporation’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 April, 2018 or later periods:
IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts
The standard establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts issued.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on
or after 01 January, 2021.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on
or after 01 January, 2019.

The Corporation expects to adopt the standard for the first
time in the 2022 annual financial statements.

The Corporation expects to adopt the standard for the first
time in the 2020 annual financial statements.

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact
on the results of the Corporation, but may result in more
disclosure than is currently provided in the annual financial
statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 1: Annual Improvements to IFRS
2014 - 2016 cycle
The amendment to IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards deleted
certain short term exemptions concerning disclosures
of financial assets, employee benefits and investment
entities from IFRS 1.

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition
and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. Specifically, if it is
probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain
tax treatment, then all tax related items are measured
according to the planned tax treatment. If it is not probable
that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax
treatment, then the tax related items are measured on the
basis of probabilities to reflect the uncertainty. Changes
in facts and circumstances are required to be treated as

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 January, 2018.
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The Corporation expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2019 annual financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 15: Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The amendment provides clarification and further
guidance regarding certain issues in IFRS 15. These
items include guidance in assessing whether promises to
transfer services are separately identifiable and guidance
regarding agent versus principal considerations.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.
IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration
The interpretation applies to circumstances when an entity
has either paid or received an amount of consideration
in advance and in a foreign currency, resulting in a nonmonetary asset or liability being recognised. The specific
issue addressed by the interpretation is how to determine
the date of the transaction for the purposes of determining
the exchange rate to use on the initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income when the non-monetary
asset or liability is derecognised. The interpretation
specifies that the date of the transaction, for purposes
of determining the exchange rate to apply, is the date
on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or liability.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 January, 2018.
The Corporation expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2019 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 and its subsequent amendments have introduced
new requirements for the classification, measurement,
impairment and derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities.

The effective date of the interpretation is for years
beginning on or after 01 January, 2018.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value.

The Corporation expects to adopt the interpretation for the
first time in the 2019 annual financial statements.

Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the outstanding
principal amount are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods.

It is unlikely that the interpretation will have a material
impact on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 4: Insurance Contracts
The amendment provides a temporary exemption that
permits, but does not require, insurers, under specified
criteria, to apply IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, rather than IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments for annual periods beginning before 1 January,
2021. The exemption is only available provided the insurer
has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9 (with
some exceptions) and that the activities are predominantly
connected with insurance.

Debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and for selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on outstanding principal amount,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The amendment further permits, but does not require,
insurers to apply the “overlay approach” to designated
financial assets when it first applies IFRS 9. The overlay
approach requires the entity to reclassify between profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, an amount which
results in the profit or loss of the designated financial
assets at the end of the reporting period being equal to
what it would have been had IAS 39 been applied to the
designated financial assets.

All other debt and equity investments are measured at
fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment that is not held for trading in other
comprehensive income with only dividend income
recognised in profit or loss.

Additional disclosures are required as a result of the
amendment.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, the standard
requires an expected credit loss model to be applied
as opposed to IAS 39’s incurred credit loss model. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. It is therefore no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 January, 2018.
The Corporation expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2019 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on
or after 01 January, 2018.
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insurance receivables, staff loans and prepayments and
cash and cash equivalents.
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The Corporation expects to adopt the standard for the first
time in the 2019 annual financial statements.

carried out by a central treasury department (Corporation
treasury) under policies approved by the board of directors.
Corporation treasury identifies, evaluates and manages
financial risks in close co-operation with the Corporation’s
operating units. The board of directors provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.
IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts; IAS
18 Revenue; IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes;
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the construction of Real Estate;
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC
31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services.

Liquidity risk
Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating units
of the Corporation in and aggregated by Corporation
finance. Corporation finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Corporation’s liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
forecasting takes into consideration debt financing plans,
covenant compliance, compliance with internal statement
of financial position ratio targets and external regulatory
requirements. The Corporation is required to maintain a
minimum solvency margin.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in
accordance with that core principle by applying specific
steps noted in the standard.
IFRS 15 also includes extensive new disclosure
requirements. The effective date of the standard is for
years beginning on or after 01 January, 2018.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and
above balance required for working capital management
is transferred to Corporation treasury who then invests
surplus cash in money market deposits and government
securities, choosing instruments with appropriate
maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient headroom as determined by the forecasting process.

The Corporation expects to adopt the standard for the first
time in the 2019 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact
on the Corporation’s annual financial statements.

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

3. Risk management

Capital risk management
The Corporation’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Corporation must comply with certain regulatory
requirements which require that the Corporation maintain
a minimum solvency margin where the aggregate value of
its assets exceeds its liabilities by not less than N$4 000
or 15%, whichever is the greater amount. The Corporation
ensures that its solvency requirement is met at all times.
Financial risk management
The Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, namely liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk.
Market risk includes interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk.
The Corporation’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Corporation’s financial performance. Risk management is
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At 31 March, 2018
Less than 1
		
year
Insurance liabilities
15 399 697
Reinsurance and
other payables
14 776 473
Finance lease liabilities
44 729

Between 2
and 5 years
-

At 31 March, 2017
Less than 1
		
year
Insurance liabilities
30 041 041
Reinsurance and
other payables
25 388 933
Finance lease liabilities
13 341

Between 2
and 5 years
-

71 456

18 027

The Corporation only invests with reputable institutions
with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to
any one counter-party. The credit quality of insurance
receivables are individually assessed using a credit rating
scorecard which takes into account the financial position,
past experience and other factors.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end are
presented in the table below. The amounts represent
the maximum exposure to credit risks. All amounts are
presented net of impairments where applicable. Refer to
the respective notes for further information.
Financial assets (N$)

Notes

2018

2017

7
8
10
13
14

50 220 168
157 153 214
10 334 208
451 467
22 476 534

51 471 026
109 170 300
31 362 433
415 123
45 556 563

The Corporation does not hedge foreign exchange
fluctuations.
`
Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March, 2018
Insurance and
		
other
		
receivables

Reinsurance
and other
payables

Total

(758 100)
(116 834)
(77 133)
(174 495)
(150 297)
(1 276 859)

3 367 440
(307 417)
(354 845)
(514 503)
(1 642 133)
229 989
778 531

Investments held to maturity
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Insurance and other receivables
Staff loans and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a variable
rate financial asset will fluctuate because of changes
in market rates. Interest on investments contributes a
significant portion of earnings and is necessary for liquidity
management. Risk related to interest rate changes on
finance lease liabilities is not considered to be significant.
The Corporation’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates primarily arises from interest-bearing
investments and cash and cash equivalents, both of which
have variable risk rates. Had the interest rates increased
(decreased) by 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points),
the after-tax affect on profit would have been a decrease
(increase) of N$577 063 (2017: N$471 046).
Foreign exchange risk
The Corporation operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, Zambian
Kwacha, Malawi Kwacha and the Kenya Shillings.

US Dollar 		
Botswana Pula
Zambian Kwacha
Malawian Kwacha
Kenyan Shillings
Tanzania Shillings
		

4 125 540
(190 583)
(277 712)
(514 503)
(1 467 638)
380 286
2 055 390
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Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March, 2017
		
		

2018 		
Gross liability
Reinsurance
			
asset

Insurance and
other
receivables

Reinsurance
and other
payables

Total

US Dollar 		
Zambian Kwacha
Malawian Kwacha
Kenyan Shillings
Other 		
		

1 666 745
914 448
2 581 193

(270 171)
(69 021)
(5 193)
(23 957)
(40 643)
(408 985)

1 396 574
845 427
(5 193)
(23 957)
(40 643)
2 172 208

The Corporation reviews its foreign currency exposure,
including commitments, on an ongoing basis.

is that proportional constitutes 67%, non-proportional 2%
and facultative 31%.

A reasonable movement in the exchange rates would not
have had a material effect on profit or loss.

The Corporation underwrites both life and non-life
insurance contracts.

Insurance risk
The Corporation is exposed to a number of risks as a
result of the nature of its business activities. The purpose
of the Corporation’s risk management process is to ensure
that the operations that expose it to risk are consistent with
the Corporation’s strategy, business objectives and risk
philosophy while maintaining an appropriate risk/reward
balance and enhancing stakeholder value which does not
compromise the Corporation’s ability to pay claims or fulfil
policyholder commitments.

Due to the long-term nature of the life insurance business,
the Corporation accepts market risk which arises due to
mismatches between assets and liabilities, provided it is
managed within specific risk tolerances and limits.
The Corporation enters into retrocession agreements with
other reinsurers to mitigate the risk exposure.
Included in the non-life insurance business is aviation, fire,
liabilities, marine, motor, miscellaneous, personal lines
and medical insurance. Fire (which includes engineering
class of business), personal lines and liabilities businesses
are the highest contributors to gross written premium. The
fire, personal lines personal lines and motor businesses
contribute the highest to loss ratio.

The objective of the insurance risk management policy is
to ensure that sufficient reserves are available in order to
cover the liabilities that arise out of insurance contracts.
The principal risk which the Corporation faces is that the
actual amount and timing of insurance claims and benefit
payments may differ from expectations. This is influenced
by the frequency and severity of claims, particularly relating
to foreign business.

These exposures are strategically mitigated through
specific risk selection and underwriting methodologies
which diversifies risk across the geographical areas.
The Corporation has selected specific markets in
Eastern, Central and Southern Africa for foreign business
underwriting.

The Corporation has developed policies and procedures
to manage its risk within an Asset Liability Managment
(‘ALM’) framework. By utilising the ALM framework to
manage assets and liabilities, the Corporation manages
the mismatch that can occur due to liquidity or economic
factors, such as interest rate changes.

The Corporation avoids underwriting risks in areas which
are prone to hurricanes, earthquakes, major floods
and unstable political environment. Furthermore, the
Corporation has event limit clauses in the underwriting
slips.

The Corporation mitigates this risk by diversifying its
reinsurance across the portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas so as to avoid a concentration of risk in
any one subset within the portfolio. The variability of risks
is also improved by careful selection and implementation
of underwriting strategy guidelines as well as the use
of reinsurance management systems. The reinsurance
portfolio includes highly rated, highly liquid securities.

Life 		
Fire 		
Health 		
Marine 		
Motor miscellaneous
Nasria 		
Aviation		
		

1 642 521
10 986 044
669 022
1 101 918
5 488 879
234 054
590 314
20 712 752

(2 704 976)
(18 092 295)
(1 101 774)
(1 814 688)
(9 039 326)
(385 451)
(972 153)
(34 110 663)

2017 		
Gross liability
Reinsurance
			
asset

Net liability

Life 		
Fire 		
Health		
Marine 		
Motor miscellaneous
Nasria 		
Aviation		
		

(4 347 497)
(29 078 339)
(1 770 796)
(2 916 606)
(14 528 205)
(619 505)
(1 562 467)
(54 823 415)

(318 187)
(34 006 630)
(4 449 816)
(938 287)
(23 094 161)
(406 943)
(423 383)
(63 637 407)

233 090
7 389 548
958 485
62 448
4 442 458
26 965
337 063
13 450 057

(85 097)
(26 617 082)
(3 491 331)
(875 839)
(18 651 703)
(379 978)
(86 320)
(50 187 350)

The geographical concentration of the Corporation’s life and
non-life contract liabilities is noted below. The disclosure is
based on the countries where the business is written. The
analysis would not be materially different if based on the
countries in which the counterparties are situated.
2018 		
		

Gross insurance
liability

Reinsurance
asset

Net liability

Namibian 		
Foreign 		
		

(51 120 642)
(3 702 773)
(54 823 415)

19 313 813
1 398 939
20 712 752

(31 806 829)
(2 303 834)
(34 110 663)

2017 		
Gross liability
Reinsurance
			
asset

Net liability

Namibian 		
Foreign 		
		

(61 582 453)
(2 054 954)
(63 637 407)

Typically, the claim process is completed within 12 months
for non-life contracts.

The concentration of life and non-life insurance risk by
insurance type before and after reinsurance is summarised
in the following tables.

As part of risk mitigation process the Corporation
purchases reinsurance and cedes it on proportional and
non-proportional basis to reduce exposure. The spread
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Net liability
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13 156 096
293 961
13 450 057

(48 426 357)
(1 760 993)
(50 187 350)
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Sensitivity analysis for life liabilities
The claims IBNR liability is statistically calculated using
certain assumptions, including an assumption of a claims
loss ratio of 85%. The table below illustrates the affect of
an adjustment to the claims loss ratio of 10% on gross
IBNR liabilities and on IBNR liabilities net of reinsurance
assets .
			 Claims loss ratio
			
increase of 10%
Effect on the current year:
Gross
Net

Decrease (increase) in after tax profit
(Increase) decrease in IBNR liability

1 183 103
(1 747 211)

459 681
(676 001)

Claims loss ratio		
decrease of 10%
Gross
Net
(1 183 103)
1 747 211

(316 115)
(464 874)

Sensitivity analysis for non-life liabilities
Certain assumptions are made regarding the claim loss
ratios used in the calculation of non-life insurance liabilities.
The following table illustrates the affect of an adjustment to
the assumption of 5% either way for treaty and facultative
insurance policies, respectively:

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Land 		
Buildings 		
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Finance lease asset
Total 		

4 448 374
31 346 626
1 570 918
1 203 748
73 306
667 336
229 841
39 540 149

(909 498)
(551 653)
(15 313)
(495 879)
(150 094)
(2 122 437)

4 448 374
31 346 626
661 420
652 095
57 993
171 457
79 747
37 417 712

2017		
		

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Land 		
Buildings 		
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Finance lease asset
Total

4 448 374
197 781
1 708 722
1 203 748
55 190
741 934
127 863
30 483 612

(743 884)
(281 820)
(2 654)
(499 390)
(104 350)
(1 632 098)

4 448 374
22 197 781
964 838
921 928
52 536
242 544
23 513
28 851 514

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

			
Treaty insurance
		
Increase of 5%
Decrease of
Effect on the current year:
in loss ratio
5% in loss ratio
Increase (decrease) in after tax profit
(Increase) decrease in IBNR liability
		

2018		
		

555 447
(1 735 772)
(1 180 325)

(555 447)
1 735 772
1 180 325

Facultative insurance
Increase of 5%
Decrease of
in loss ratio
5% in loss ratio
1 755 524
(5 486 012)
(3 730 488)

(1 755 524)
5 486 012
3 730 488

The Corporation holds level 2 financial assets. Fair values
have been derived with reference to indirect quoted prices
of the unit-linked investments. No changes have been
made to the valuation technique in comparison with the
prior year.

For further information on the methodologies and
assumptions used in the calculation of the life and non-life
IBNR liabilities, refer to note 1.2.

4. Fair value information

Non-financial assets
Land and buildings, included in property, plant and
equipment, are revalued to their fair value periodically and
are classified as having a level 3 fair value. The main level
3 inputs used in the valuation are: market-related annual
net income from similar properties; return on similar local
investment; and office expenditure estimates.

Refer to note 8 for further detail on the fair value adjustments
and reconciliation of level 2 assets.

Further information on valuation techniques and the
amount of the valuation is detailed in note 5 as well as a
reconciliation of land and buildings.
Financial instruments: fair value hierarchy of assets
held at fair value
Level 1 assets are those that have quoted unadjusted prices
in active markets for identical assets that the Corporation
can access at measurement date. Level 2 assets require
inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly. Level 3 assets have no observable inputs.
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Opening
balance

Additions

Land 		
Buildings 		
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Finance lease asset
		

4 448 374
22 197 781
964 838
921 928
52 536
242 544
23 513
28 851 514

7 276 922
9 400
18 769
138 765
101 978
7 545 834

Disposals Revaluations Depreciation
(54 694)
(469)
(46 625)
(101 788)

1 871 923
1 871 923

Total

(258 124)
(269 833)
(12 843)
(163 227)
(45 744)
(749 771)

4 448 374
31 346 626
661 420
652 095
57 993
171 457
79 747
37 417 712

				
Opening
				balance

Additions Depreciation

Total

Land 				
Buildings 				
Furniture and fixtures 			
Motor vehicles 			
Office equipment			
IT equipment 			
Finance lease asset 			
				

1 784 491
707 826
1 060 572
55 190
76 631
3 684 710

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

4 448 374
20 413 290
445 586
54 375
304 538
48 129
25 714 292
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(188 574)
(193 019)
(2 654)
(138 625)
(24 616)
(547 488)

4 448 374
22 197 781
964 838
921 928
52 536
242 544
23 513
28 851 514
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2018
N$

2017
N$

Held to maturity financial instruments
Republic of Namibia Government bonds (Baa3)		
Standard Bank Fixed deposit account (BB+) 		
		

Useful life
Not depreciated
50 years
5 years
4 years
3 years
3 years
3 years

These investments do not individually carry their own credit rating as they are made up of a portfolio of diversified
assets which carry their own individual ratings. Prior to investment, management analyses the risk and only invests with
reputable institutions. Refer to note 3 for information on risk management and to note 4 for fair value information.
All balances are denominated in Namibian dollars.

Land and buildings consist of a property situated on ERF
8571 registered under title deed T2114/2011, Corner of
Lazarett Street and Feld Street, Windhoek, Namibia. The
property measures 1,949 square metres in size.

Reconciliation of level 2 financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

6. Intangible assets

(29 237)

2018 			
Carrying
Cost Accumulated
value		 amortisation
535 973

547 293

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018			
Opening Amortisation
					balance

Total

Computer software 				
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017		
Opening
				balance
470 198

565 210

2017
Carrying
value

(17 917)

Computer software 			

31 180 067
20 290 959
51 471 026

Level 2 fair value investments in funds with no credit ratings
Bank Windhoek Select Fund 		
37 605 119
34 849 745
FNB Namibia Unit Trust Income Fund 		
15 664 437
14 491 795
EMH Prescient Unit Trust Fund 		
20 963 051
Liberty Life Investment Policy 		
38 861 338
36 708 961
Allan Gray Namibia Balance Fund		
8 955 680
21 826 620
Old Mutual Nedbank Namibia Corporate Fund 		
3 164
2 957
Prudential Namibia Inflation Plus Fund 		
20 561 383
Bank Windhoek Money Market Investment Fund 		
351 954
1 290 222
Prudential Namibia Inflation Fund 		
14 187 087
		
157 153 213
109 170 300

Details of property

565 210

28 124 166
22 096 002
50 220 168

8. Investments at fair value through profit or loss

The carrying value of land and buildings under the cost
model would have been N$ 30 335 905 (2017 N$ 23 058
983).

Computer software

2017
N$

The fair value of the held to maturity investments is considered to approximate the carrying amount. No amounts are
past due or considered impaired. All amounts are denominated in Namibian dollars. Refer to note 3 for credit risk
management.

Revaluations
The valuation of land and buildings is done on a triennial
basis by an independent, professional, recognised valuator
with sufficient experience in the locations and segments of
the property being valued. At 31 March, 2018, Mr FA Frank
- Schultz valued land and buildings at N$ 35 795 000. The
next independent valuation will be done during the 2021
financial year.

		
		
		
Cost Accumulated
			 amortisation

2018
N$

7. Investments held to maturity

Depreciation rates
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided
on a straight-line basis to the assets’ residual values as
follows:
Item
Land
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Finance lease assets

		

547 293

(11 320)

535 973

Additions Amortisation

Total

87 825

(10 730)

Opening balance 		
Additions at fair value 		
Disposals at fair value		
Interest capitalised 		
Dividend capitalised 		
Coupon interest on government bonds 		
Coupon withdrawals 		
Fair value adjustments 		
Expenses 		
		

142 263 836
15 000 000
(59 078 256)
4 172 948
1 377 333
1 209 375
4 549 797
(324 733)
109 170 300

20 712 752

13 450 057

9. Reinsurance assets
Reinsurance asset receivable 		

No impairment loss was recognised by the Corporation at year end (2017:N$nil), as the Corporation is satisfied that
receivables are fully recoverable. The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair value at the reporting date.
No profits on inception of reinsurance contracts were earned during the year (2017:N$nil).

547 293

Amortisation rate
Computer software is estimated to have a useful life of 10
years.
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109 170 300
40 000 000
4 134 645
684 859
1 209 375
(2 160 625)
4 513 008
(398 349)
157 153 213
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2018
N$

2017
N$

10. Insurance and other receivables

		

2018
N$

2017
N$

2 938 444
(1 403 274)
1 535 170

3 712 691
(774 247)
2 938 444

12. Deferred acquisition costs

Premium insurance debtors 		
Provision for doubtful debtors 		
Other receivable 		
		

10 045 404
(3 029 798)
3 318 602
10 334 208

31 884 606
(522 173)
31 362 433

Deferred acquisition costs
Balance at the beginning of the year 		
Expenses deferred 		
		

Premium debtors are due from various reputable insurance companies. They do not have external credit ratings,
however have been doing business with the Corporation for longer than 6 months and have no defaulting history.

The reinsurance deferred acquisition costs have been included in the reinsurance and other payable balance in note 20.

Credit quality of premium debtors of short-term insurance
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Reinsurance deferred acquisition costs
Balance at the beginning of the year 		
Expenses deferred 		
		

Premium debtors of short-term insurance

(238 011)
9 982
(228 029)

(341 547)
103 536
(238 011)

451 467
1 792 302
2 243 769

85 587
415 127
500 714

13. Staff loans, deposits and other prepayments

Counterparties without external credit rating
Group 2 		
10 334 208
31 362 433
Group 1 – new customer (less 6 months).
Group 2 – existing customers with more than 6 months’ history with the company and no defaults in the past.
Group 3 – existing customer (more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past.
Insurance and other receivables impaired
The ageing of amounts past due and impaired is as follows:
120+ days 		

-

Insurance and other receivables past due but not impaired
Insurance and other receivables that are less than 3 months past due are not considered for impairment.
120 days 		
2 507 625
120+ days 		
522 173
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance 		
(522 173)
Provision for impairment		
(2 507 625)
		
(3 029 798)

1 916 900

522 173
(522 173)
(522 173)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The
Corporation does not hold any collateral as security. Foreign exchange risk information is disclosed in note 3.
Refer to note 33 for related party information.

11. Current tax (payable) receivable
The current tax balance is made up as indicated in the tables below:
Refer to note 33 for related party information.
Normal tax 		

(7 668 976)

1 206 137

Provision for taxation
Opening balance 		
Provision for the year 		
Interest charged by Receiver of Revenue 		
Provisional tax payment 		
		

1 206 137
(15 975 113)
7 100 000
(7 668 976)

5 439 266
(4 453 864)
(243 608)
464 343
1 206 137

Balance of provision for taxation consists of:
2017 		
2018 		
		

1 206 137
(8 875 113)
(7 668 976)

1 206 137
1 206 137
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Staff loans advanced 		
Deposits and prepayments 		
		

The balances are denominated in Namibian dollars. No amounts are past due and have no indication of impairment. The
carrying amounts approximate the fair values of the balances due to their short term nature.
Refer to note 3 for information on credit risk.

14. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 		
Current bank accounts 		
Call bank accounts 		
		

1 273
14 360 632
8 114 629
22 476 534

1 039
5 179 875
40 375 649
45 556 563

First National Bank Namibia Limited provides the guarantee facilities to Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation
Limited of N$2 000 000 in favour of NAMFISA in respect of registration of short-term business (2017:N$2 000 000).In
addition, there is a N$50 000 (2017:N$50 000) credit card facility available to the Corporation.
Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand, that are neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings:
Credit rating
First National Bank Limited: A1+ (2017: A1+) 		
Bank Windhoek Limited: A1+ (2017: A1+) 		
Simonis Storm: no rating (2017: no rating) 		
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7 612 290
14 837 446
25 525
22 475 261

39 606 158
5 389 792
559 574
45 555 524
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2018
N$

2017
N$

15. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items in the table below. Only
those balances which meet the definition of a financial asset have been included and accordingly the line items
may not correspond directly to the Statement of Financial Position. Refer to note 3 for information on financial risk
management.
2018		
Loans and
		
receivables
			
			

Fair value
through profit
or loss - held
for trade

Held to
maturity
investments

Total

10 512 344
451 467
22 476 534
33 440 345

157 153 214
157 153 214

50 220 168
50 220 168

207 373 382
10 512 344
451 467
22 476 534
240 813 727

2017		
Loans and
		
receivables
			
			

Fair value
through profit
or loss - held
for trade

Held to
maturity
investments

Total

109 170 300
109 170 300

51 471 026
51 471 026

160 641 326
31 362 433
415 123
45 556 563
237 975 445

Investments
Insurance and other receivables
Staff loans and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
		

Investments
Insurance and other receivables
Staff loans and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
		

31 362 433
415 123
45 556 563
77 334 119

20 000 000

20 000 000

General reserve
Opening balance 		
63 668 328
56 144 004
Transfer from retained income 		
10 842 027
7 524 324
		
74 510 355
63 668 328
In terms of the section 28 of the Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to
maintain a General reserve into which it shall deposit at the end of the each financial year end an amount equal to 50%
of the net profit before tax for the year provided the General reserve fund is less than the authorised share capital of
the Corporation. Alternatively, should the General reserve be equal to or exceed the authorised share capital of the
Corporation, then 25% of the net profit before tax must be transferred to the reserve.
2 334 503
(1 372 773)
2 168 405
3 130 135

1 480 464
(223 805)
1 077 844
2 334 503

A staff welfare fund is required to be maintained in terms of section 29 of the Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation
Act, 1998. The annual amount transferred to the fund may not exceed 5% of the net profit after tax of the Corporation for
the financial year. The reserve shall be utilised for recreation facilities, low interest-bearing loans and any other purposes
aimed at enhancing the employees’ welfare of the Corporation.
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2017
N$

3 587 172
1 871 923
5 459 095

3 587 172
3 587 172

The revaluation reserve relates to revaluations performed on land and building every 3 years. Refer to note 5 for
information on land and buildings.
Total reserves 		

83 099 585

69 590 003

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 		
- in second to fifth year inclusive 		
		
less: future finance charges 		
Present value of minimum lease payments 		

53 658
76 103
129 761
(13 576)
116 185

15 131
18 690
33 821
(2 453)
31 368

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year 		
- in second to fifth year inclusive		
		

44 729
71 456
116 185

13 341
18 027
31 368

The finance lease liabilities relate to IT equipment (photo copier machines) that were purchased under finance leases.
The liabilities are repayable in 36 equal monthly installments of N$4 375 (2017:N$1 131) and bear interest at prime. The
book values of the IT equipment held under the leases amount to N$79 747 (2017:N$23 513).
Information regarding the management of risks surrounding finance leases is detailed in note 3.
The fair values of the loans approximate the carrying amount.

17. Reserves

Staff welfare reserve
Opening balance 		
Utilised during the year 		
Transfer from retained income 		
		

Revaluation reserve
Opening balance 		
Gain on revaluation of property 		
		

2018
N$

18. Finance lease liabilities

16. Share capital
Authorised and issued shares
20 000 000 ordinary shares of N$1 each 		

		

19. Deferred tax
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability 		

(8 387 384)

(11 747 925)

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position.
Deferred tax liability 		
Deferred tax asset 		
Total net deferred tax liability 		

(15 123 573)
6 736 189
(8 387 384)

(13 781 184)
2 033 259
(11 747 925)

Reconciliation of net deferred tax liability
At beginning of year 		
Temporary differences on property, plant and equipment 		
Temporary differences on investments 		
Temporary differences on prepayments 		
Temporary differences on accruals 		
Temporary differences on deferred acquisition costs 		
Temporary differences on finance leases 		
Temporary differences on income in advance 		
Temporary differences on insurance and other receivables 		
		

(11 747 925)
(1 004 897)
(319 476)
67 938
445 854
4 461
3 564 853
601 808
(8 387 384)

(7 661 377)
(455 724)
(4 800 000)
13 100
96 153
214 627
(399)
845 695
(11 747 925)
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2018
N$

2017
N$

Expected release of deferred tax asset
Within 12 months 		

6 736 189

2 033 259

Expected release of deferred tax liability
Within 12 months 		
After 12 months 		
		

(2 184 620)
(12 938 952)
(15 123 572)

(2 494 685)
(9 253 240)
(11 747 925)

17 836 300
228 030
3 067 681
21 132 011

18 065 932
238 011
7 084 994
25 388 937

20. Reinsurance and other payables
Reinsurance payables 		
Reinsurance deferred acquisition costs 		
Other payables 		
		

The fair value of reinsurance and other payables approximates the carrying amount due to their short term nature.
Details on foreign exchange balances have been disclosed in note 3.
Refer to note 12 for information corresponding to reinsurance deferred acquisition costs and to note 33 for related party
information.

21. Insurance liabilities
Reconciliation of insurance liabilities - 2018

Opening
Incurred
balance
(utilised)
		 during the year
Provision for claims incurred but not reported, IBNR (refer to 21.3) 33 596 366
Provision for unearned premiums (refer to 21.1.a )
13 089 514
Provision for outstanding claims (refer to 21.2)
16 951 527
63 637 407

5 827 351
(7 483 416)
(7 157 928)
(8 813 993)

Reconciliation of insurance liabilities- 2017

Opening
Incurred
balance
(utilised)
		 during the year

Total

39 423 717
5 606 098
9 793 599
54 823 414
Total

Provision for claims incurred but not reported, IBNR (refer to 21.3) 22 617 000
Provision for unearned premiums (refer to 21.1.a )
16 815 210
Provision for outstanding claims (refer to 21.2 )
12 113 669
51 545 879

10 979 366
(3 725 696)
4 837 858
12 091 528

33 596 366
13 089 514
16 951 527
63 637 407

Long-term insurance contracts 		
Short-term insurance contracts 		
		

1 920 556
49 106 097
51 026 653

779 295
61 212 603
61 991 898

The liabilities arising from insurance contracts are expected to be settled as disclosed in the following tables. The cash
flows are undiscounted:
Estimated timing of outflows: 2018

2 - 5 years Over

5 years

Total

49 106 097
49 106 097

1 920 556
1 920 556

1 920 556
49 106 097
51 026 653

Long-term insurance contracts
Short-term insurance contracts
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2018
N$

2017
N$

2 - 5 years

Over 5 years

Total

61 212 603
61 212 603

779 295
779 295

779 295
61 212 603
61 991 898

21.1 Gross provision for unearned premiums
Balance beginning of the year 		
Premiums written during the year 		
Premiums earned during the year		
		

13 089 514
244 621 087
(252 104 503)
5 606 098

16 815 210
307 145 059
(310 870 755)
13 089 514

21.1.a Net unearned premium reserve
Balance beginning of the year 		
Utilised during the year 		
		

11 969 550
(7 270 703)
4 698 847

15 256 496
(3 286 946)
11 969 550

Estimated timing of outflows: 2017
Long-term insurance contracts
Short-term insurance contracts

The balance comprises
Gross provision for unearned premiums 		
Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums 		
		
21.2 Provision for outstanding claims
Balance beginning of the year 		
(Utilised) incurred for the year 		
		

5 606 098
(907 251)
4 698 847

13 089 514
(1 119 964)
11 969 550

16 951 527
(7 157 928)
9 793 599

12 113 669
4 837 858
16 951 527

Provision for outstanding claims ceded to reinsurers
Balance beginning of the year 		
Incurred (utilised) for the year 		
		

(3 411 803)
2 393 063
(1 018 740)

(1 082 604)
(2 329 199)
(3 411 803)

Net provision for outstanding claims 		

8 774 859

13 539 724

21.3 Provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Balance beginning of the year 		
Incurred short-term 		
Incurred long-term 		
		

31 950 857
2 534 438
1 141 661
35 626 956

22 617 000
8 554 562
779 295
31 950 857

Reinsurance provision for claims incurred but not reported
Balance beginning of the year 		
Incurred for the year 		
		

(7 272 779)
(7 717 221)
(14 990 000)

(1 802 000)
(5 470 779)
(7 272 779)

Net provision for claims incurred but not reported 		

20 636 956

24 678 078

22. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below. Only those balances which
qualify as financial liabilties are included and accordingly the line item may not correspond directly with the statement of
financial position. Information regarding the risk management of financial liabilities is detailed in note 3.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Finance lease liabilities 		
Reinsurance and other payables 		
Insurance liabilities 		
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116 185
14 776 473
15 399 697
30 292 355

31 368
25 388 933
30 041 041
55 461 342
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2018
N$

2017
N$

23. Premiums

		

2018
N$

2017
N$

26. Results of operating activities

Gross premiums written
Long-term insurance contracts 		
Short-term insurance contracts 		
Change in provision for unearned premiums 		
		

15 961 036
222 503 415
7 483 515
245 947 966

4 594 385
298 824 980
3 725 694
307 145 059

Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Long-term reinsurane contracts 		
Short-term reinsurance contracts 		
Change in provision for unearned premiums 		
		

(11 992 252)
(71 275 853)
(212 813)
(83 480 918)

(6 104 899)
(58 450 459)
(438 750)
(64 994 108)

Dividend revenue
Dividend income received on money market investments 		

684 859

1 231 148

Interest revenue
Bank 		
Interest on investments 		
Total interest income 		
Total investment income 		

1 937 507
8 874 353
10 811 860
11 496 719

339 544
8 110 985
8 450 529
9 681 677

a) Gross benefits and claims incurred
Short-term insurance		
Long-term insurance 		
		

(77 723 164)
(10 173 920)
(87 897 084)

(153 338 648)
(4 400 921)
(157 739 569)

b) Claims ceded to reinsurers
Short-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred 		
Long-term reinsurance recoveries relating to claims incurred		
		

13 286 162
8 041 847
21 328 009

28 192 862
3 240 717
31 433 579

c) Gross change in insurance liabilities
Change in provision for outstanding claims 		
Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR 		
Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR 		
		

7 157 928
(2 534 438)
(3 292 914)
1 330 576

(4 837 858)
(8 554 562)
(779 295)
(14 171 715)

d) Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers
Change in provision for outstanding claims 		
Short-term change in provision for claims IBNR 		
Long-term change in provision for claims IBNR 		
		

(2 393 063)
7 717 221
2 151 252
7 475 410

2 329 199
5 470 779
1 645 509
9 445 487

24. Investment revenue

25. Net benefits and claims
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Results of operating activities for the year is stated after charging the following significant expenses in the table below.
Operating expenses by nature
Actuary fees 		
Auditors remuneration - external auditors 		
Bad debts written off and provision for bad debts 		
Employee costs 		
Fees and commission paid 		
Foreign exchange losses 		
Gross benefits and claims incurred 		
Legal expenses 		
Other consulting and professional fees 		
Telephone and internet expenses 		
Training 		
Travel 		
Other operating expenses not individually material 		
		

412 421
530 390
2 508 254
20 782 533
56 480 560
1 036 195
87 897 084
2 045 039
4 134 334
1 006 135
1 762 019
2 763 096
4 614 123
185 972 183

522 463
355 230
1 916 900
17 683 049
76 874 856
622 084
157 739 569
1 872 362
2 282 720
729 131
1 097 348
2 862 260
5 361 413
269 919 385

Employee costs
Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits 		
Housing benefit 		
Travel allowance		
Motor vehicle allowance 		
Other short term costs 		
Termination benefits 		
Total employee costs 		

13 658 901
2 851 231
166 703
2 520 721
241 688
1 343 289
20 782 533

12 304 508
2 483 624
151 845
1 444 351
73 503
1 225 218
17 683 049

10 580

3 756

27. Finance cost
Interest on finance lease liability 		

28. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Current
Long-term Insurance business 		
Short-term insurance business 		
		
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences 		
		

105 994
15 869 119
15 975 113

94 525
4 359 339
4 453 864

(3 360 542)
12 614 571

4 086 548
8 540 412

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting profit 		
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 32% (2017: 32%) 		

43 368 106
13 877 794

30 097 293
9 631 134

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Non-deductible expenses 		
Non-taxable long-term insurance net income 		
		

868 617
(2 131 840)
12 614 571

10 122
(1 100 844)
8 540 412
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2018
N$

2017
N$

29. Cash generated from operations

		

2018
N$

2017
N$

2 944 260
7 668 976
(1 181 760)
(270 124)

1 206 137
(4 861 665)
(243 758)

2 944 260
7 100 000
5 000 000
12 482 569
4 455 075

220 735
3 500 000
9 626 447
3 310 531

851 459

707 008

33. Related parties

(Loss) profit before taxation 		

43 368 106

30 097 293

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 		
Dividend income 		
Interest received on investments 		
Finance costs expensed 		
Fair value gains 		
Movements in insurance liability 		
Staff welfare reserve 		
Unrealised foreign exchange losses 		

Relationships
Shareholder: Government of the Republic of Namibia (Ministry of Finance)

761 091
(684 859)
(10 811 860)
10 580
(4 513 008)
(8 813 993)
(1 372 773)
1 068 085

558 218
(1 231 148)
(8 450 529)
3 756
(4 549 797)
10 446 019
(223 805)
622 084

Related party balances

Changes in working capital:
Insurance and other receivables 		
Reinsurance assets 		
Deferred acquisition costs 		
Staff loans and other prepayments		
Reinsurance and other payables 		
		

Amounts owing by (to) the Government of the Republic of Namibia
Other receivables 		
Current tax (payable) receivable 		
Insurance and other payables: Value-added tax 		
Insurance and other payables: PAYE (employees’ tax) 		
Related party transactions

21 028 225
(7 262 695)
1 403 274
(1 743 055)
(4 241 628)
28 195 490

(10 095 761)
(7 361 450)
774 247
(78 773)
5 467 218
15 977 572

30. Tax paid

Payments to the Government of the Republic of Namibia
Legal fees paid 		
Income tax paid 		
Dividend declared and paid		
Agency payments: Value-added tax 		
Agency payments: PAYE 		

34. Directors’ emoluments

Balance at beginning of the year 		
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss 		
Balance at end of the year 		
		

1 206 137
(15 975 113)
7 668 976
(7 100 000)

5 439 266
(4 453 864)
(1 206 137)
(220 735)

31 368
10 580
(43 037)
117 274
116 185

57 230
3 576
(25 862)
(3 576)
31 368

32. Contingencies
Contingent liabilities represent items that as at 31 March, 2018 have not been recognised in the statement of financial
position because there is significant uncertainty at that date as to the necessity for the Corporation to make payments
in respect of the legal case.
The Corporation has the following legal cases pending:
1. Legal action against Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited concerning the notices requiring all companies
in the insurance industry to cede business per policy level to Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited;
2. Legal action against Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited by the industry regarding the constitutionality
of the Namibia National Reinsurance Act 1 of 1999; and
3. Legal action by Namibia National Reinsurance Corporation Limited against industry to compel insurance companies
to comply with Notices and regulations contained in Government Notices 332 - 338 as gazetted on 29 December,
2017.
The Corporation’s lawyers consider the extent of the exposure of the Corporation to be limited to the applicants’ legal
costs. Accordingly, the Corporation has a contingent liability in respect of legal costs of about N$2.8 million payable to
the applicants in respect of its legal costs incurred.
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35. Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified. The effect of the reclassification is reflected in the table below.
There is no effect on profit or loss.

31. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Finance lease borrowing
Opening balance 		
Interest charged 		
Finance lease payments 		
Additional finance lease liabilities recognised 		
Other 		
		

Fees for services as directors 		

In the Statement of Financial Position, an amount of N$559 574 included in Investments at fair value through profit or
loss is now included in Cash and cash equivalents. In addition, Reinsurance assets of N$1 645 509 were previously
netted off against Insurance liabilities. These have been moved to Reinsurance assets.
Is the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Gross benefits and claims incurred of N$4 726 228 and an amount included
in Change of Insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers of N$6 303 907 were both moved out of Other operating expenses
into their respective lines in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Statement of Financial Position
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 		
Reinsurance assets 		
Cash and cash equivalents		
Insurance liabilities 		

-

(559 574)
1 645 509
559 574
(1 645 509)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Gross benefits and claims incurred 		
Change in insurance liabilities ceded to reinsurers 		
Other operating expenses 		

-

4 726 228
6 303 907
(11 030 135)
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Vision:

To be the preferred reinsurance company

NamibRe’s mandate:

Provide reinsurance services locally in order to curb capital outflow from the
insurance industry

Mission:

To provide professional and quality reinsurance services to our clients and
maximize shareholder returns

Values:

Integrity - We are open, honest and reliable
Positive attitude - We are enthusiastic, proactive and we enjoy what we do
Understanding and empathy - We are good listeners and we express
ourselves in a polite manner coupled with due care
Professional Service – We have the ability to use our knowledge competently,
confidently and with a positive approach
Deliver People’s Growth – NamibRe strives to enhance the well-being of
all staff members by embracing competency development initiatives and
ensuring equitable conditions of employment
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